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Scottsboro case, concerns "alleged rape of two white girls by 9 
Negro boys" in Alabama, 1936. 
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URGES PATTERSON 
BE SENT TO CHAIR 
Continued From Page One. 

hear any further argument" and 
that the court would "not be tam­
pered with.' ' Twice later in the 
day the defense moved unsucces -
fully for a mistrial because of com­
ments by Mr. Hutson on the testi­
mony of the egro defendants. 

Before the closing arguments be­
gan, the defense succeeded in read­
ing into the r ord the testimony 
of Dr. R. R. Bridge , a phy ician 
who examined Victoria Price, the 
complaining witness, within an 
hour after she was taken from the 
freight train on which she says she 
was assaulted by a dozen Negroes. 

Pbyslclan Contradicts Woman. 

Dr. Bridges, a Scottsboro phyai­
cian, was too ill to come to court, 
but he testified before Judge James 
E. Horton at one ot Patterson'• 
earlier trial.I!! that the woman's 
pulse and breathing were normal 
and that her body showed no sign 
of cuts and bruises with which she 
testified at this trial that ■he was 
covered. 

The doctor had testified alM that 
he found exual indications which 
Judge Callahan refused to permit 
the defense to prove might have 
been accounted for by event.a which 
happened in a hobo jungle in Chat­
tanooga the night before Ruby 
Bates and Mrs. Price hoboed their 
way home to Huntsville with their 
escorts. 

One of these, Lester Carter, testi­
fied today that he was with the 
girls aboard the freight train when 
a fight broke out between colored 
and white vagrants who were also 
on the train. It was Immaterial, 
Judge Callahan ruled, whether he 
and Orville Gilley had spent the 
night with Ruby and Mrs. Price. 

Later when Mr. Knight was ex­
tracting in detail from Carter the 
various stage of hi wandering 
from coast to coast, Samuel S. 
Leibowitz, chief defense counsel, 
protested. Judge Callahan held 
that the evidence was admissible. 
Mr. Leibowitz inquired why he had 
not been pet·mitted to trace the 
movements of Victoria Price prior 
to the alleged attack and Judge 
Callahan threatened to cite him for 
contempt. 

"I won't have insinuations that 
you were denied something that 
somebody else got,'' he shouted. 

Carter was permitted to testify, 
however, that he overheard Mrs. 
Price urge one of the white hoboes 
while she was in jail at Scottsboro 
to pretend that he was her brother. 

Carter said he had given up hobo 
life and was now a laborer for the 
Board of Education in New York. 

Pattenon on the Stand. 
Patterson next took the stand. 

Over and over he denied that he 
bad touched Mrs. Price or Ruby 
Bates, or that he had even seen any 
woman on the train. The white 
hoboes had been throwing stonea 
at him and the "other colored," 
he explained, and he had fought 
with them ''to make them atop 
bothering us." 

Mr. Hutson, crou-examinlng the 

nled patticipating in any attack on 
the white women. 

Huteon Addre aes Jury. 
The State offered no rebuttal and 

after a short recess, during which 
he prepared himself by brushing 
his wavy brown hair, putting on a 
waistcoat and straightening his 
small blue bow tie, Mr. Hutson be­
gan. 

He got quickly to his point. Thi 
was a simplf" case of rape, he said. 

lnce the complainant wa.s white, 
the isaue narrowed down to one 
question: 

"Did he do it?" 
The Morgan County solicitor then 

de cribed in various figure11 of 
speech the loathsome nature of the 
crime charged to Patterson . The 
lawmakers of Alabama, represent­
ing "the wisdom of the ages," had 
decreed that thi!' crime should be 
punished by death. The law held a 
woman's body inviolate until she 
surrendered her elf voluntarily, and 
whatever else Victoria Price might 
be, sh was "a human being of the 
female species." 

It was Vhen that he bade his ap­
peal for the protection of woman­
hood, and he warned the jurors 
that when they had rendered their 
verdict and gone home they would 
have to face their neighbors. His 
voice rose to a crescondo as he 
choked back a ■ob evoked by his 
own eloquence in lauding the 
martyrdom of Victoria Price. 

He had no l!lympathy to waste 
upon the defendants because they 
had been kept in prison five years. 
What of Mrs. Price - this woma 
llttle more than a girl, who :for :fou 
years has stood up under repeate 
attacks of the dPf n e while l'!h 
sought vindication of herself, pun­
i hment of the guilty Negroes and 
protection for her sisters in the 
State?" 

"She fighb1 tor the rights of the 
womanhood of Alabama," he shout­
ed. 

Watt• Stlck■ to Evidence. 
Mr. Watts, a prominent attorney 

in the home town of Mrs. Price, 
made a calm and detailed analyst■ 
of the evidence submitted, assert­
Ing that the story told by Mr■ . 
Price had been refuted by the 
State's own witnel!see "and contra• 
dieted by the physical fact■ in the 
case." Rape was a crime of se­
crecy, not one committed in broad 
da light in full view of the public 
highway by a dozen men 11trangers 
to each other. 

Introducing himself a■ a "friend 
and neighbor'' from Madison Coun­
ty, Mr. Watts criticize the State for 
not placing Orville Gilley, an eye­
witness of the alleged crime, on the 
witness stand, and remarked that 
he could not refrain from wonder­
ing why the State had left Jt for 
the defense to present medical te1-
tlmony which waa in the State's 
possession. 

He too urged jurors to weigh 
the evidence with common sense, 
and in answer to Mr. Hutson's plea 
for the protection of womanhood 
appealed for "protection of the in• 
nocent." 

"It take~ courage to do the right 
thing In the face of public clamor 
for the wrong thing, but when jus­
tice is not administered fairly, gov­
ernments disintegrate and there t■ 
no protection for any one, man or 
woman, black or white." 

Mr. Knight, who had the lut 
word for the prosecution, summed 
up briefly and with reatraint, eon• 
flnihg himself to the evidence and 
arguing that all the testimony 1ub­
mitted, save that of Pattenon him­
self, tended to bear out tbe co.n-: 
plalnant's story. 

clefendant, blustered and stormed WILL SPONSOR DESTROYER 
about the court room, repeating the 
Negro's answers to his questions 
with obvious scorn and disbelief in Mr1. Frank Learned WIii Name 
hl1 voice and manner. Sometimes the Craven for Her Father. 
he didn't wait for Patterson to 
answer one question before he 
asked another, and he frequently 
attributed words to the witness that 
the Negro had not uttered. 

- At last the local prosecutor fell 
back upon the record of the origi­
nal trials at cottsboro, although 
Mr. Leibowitz protested that the 
l"ecord was inadmi ible on the 
ground hat the Supreme Court of 
the United tate had d clared the 
whole proceeding illegal becau e 
the defendant were not adequately 
represented ther by counsel. 

Patterson said he did not remem­
ber testifying a the r cord indi­
cated he had done when he was 
asked what he :,aw aboard the 
freight train on Ma1ch 25, 1931. 
According to the tran cript from 
which Mr. Hutson read , the egro 
had testifi d that he saw all but 
three of the nin egroes in cus­
tory attack the white girl . LA.ter, 

Special to TH• NIW YOIUt TnDI. 

WA HINGTON, Jan. 22. - Mn. 
Frank Learned of 48 West Ninth 
Street, New York City, was desig­
nated by Secretary wanson today 
as sponsor for the destroyer 
Craven, which will be the third 
naval vessel to bear the name of 
her father , Commander Tunis A. M. 
Craven, who wa killed in the Civil 
War when hll'! vessel was torpedoed. 

The new Craven will be launched 
by the Bethlehem hipbulldlng Cor­
poration at Quincy, Mas■ . The 
date is some months off. 

Commander Craven went down 
with his hip on Aug. 5, 186f, in 
Mobile Bay, ending a career which 
embraced the Iexican War and 
the greater part of the Civil War. 
Hi name was first carried by a 
tarp do boat and then by a de-
stroyer, since decommissioned. I 

reading from anoth r part of th Episcopal Convention Date Set. 
eame record, Mr. Leibowitz showed Cl Cl NATI, Jan. 22 (. ,.-John 
that Patter on had te tifled ju t as 
he had today. J. Row . ae general chairman, an-

Four of Patterson• co-defend nts nounced today that the fifty-second 
followed him on the witness stand. tri nnial convention of the Episco­
They wei·e Olin Montgomery, '-''illie I pa.l Church will be held here, open­
Roberson, Ozi Powell and Andy ing Oct. 6, 1937. The general con­
Wright, Negro bo:,rs who have v ntlon I the Jaw-making body of 
grown to manhood in jail. All de- the church. 
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of the case because it ia the most tellins inclicbnent of the pro­
aecution we know. 

We reprint it at a time when the Scottsboro boy, are a,ain 
on trial following two reveraala by the U. S. Supreme Court of 
previous conviction• and following the granting of a new trial 
in one cue by Judge Horton. 

In our judpnent no one who reada Judce Horton'• temperate 
and fair statement of the evidence can fail to conclude that the 
Scottaboro boys are wboUy innocent of the charge of rape. 

The undersisned defense committee, compoaed of the oraan- )' 
izations which have been active in the defense, u well u others, 
1e>licita the support of all citizens interested to aid tbeae boy, 
set fair triala and ultimate vindication. Use the coupon on the 
back cover. 
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Col. Wm. Jay SchiefTelin, Treasurer 
Rt. Rev. William Scarlett, St. Louis, Mo. 
Dean Elbert Russell~ Durham~ N. C. 
Prof. James Weldon Johnson, Nashville, Tenn. 

Vice-Chairmen 
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Calendar of the Scot:t:sboro Case 

1931 -March 24 
Two white girls, Victoria Price and Ruby Bates from Hunt.­

ville, Ala., hobo their way to Chattanooga and stay there over­
night. 

March 25 
They return on a freight train leaving Chattanooga for 

Alabama. On the train are a number of Negro and white boys 
who engage in a fight, the white boys being thrown off the 
train. Alleged rape of the two girls by the Negro boys follows. 
When the train pulls into Paint Rock, Ala., at 1 :30 P. M. nine 
Negro boys, aged 13 to 20, are arrested and locked up at Scot a­
boro, the county seat. Victoria Price and Ruby Bates are 
examined by doctors that, afternoon. 

The attitude of the community becomes 10 threatening that 
the Governor calla, out the militia late that night. Next day 
the Negro boys are ,taken 'to Gadsden,, Ala., under military 
protection. 

March 30 
The grand jury is called into session at Scottsboro and next 

day indicts the nine boys for rape .. 

April 6 to 9 

All the boys are tried at Scottsboro in groups or singly, and 
all are convicted except Roy Wright, in whose case the ju ·y 
diaagreed. All are sentenced to death. The boys were repre­
sented by a white attorney from Chattanooga, one Stephen 
Roddy, retained by a local ministers' auociation, and local 
lawyers appointed by the court . 

. April and May 

Attorneys for the International Labor Defense and for the 
National Association for the Advancement of Colored People 
enter the cue. George W. Chamlee of Chattanooga, former 
county Solicitor General, is retained by some of the defendantt. 



June 22 
Motion for a new trial argued by Joseph R. Brodsky and 

denied. • ••• 

1932 -January 21 
An appeal to the Alabama Supreme Court from all the con­

victions is argued by George W. Chamlee, Joseph R. Brodsky 
and kving Schwab, retained by the International Labor Defenae. 

March 24 
The State Supreme Court affirms the conviction of seven 

defendants but reverses the conviction of Eugene Williams 
on the ground that he was a minor and aa such could not be 
tried in the Circuit Court until after a bearing in the juvenile 
court. The court denies a re-hearing on April 9. 

May 
Petition for leave to appeal filed in the U. S. Supreme Court 

and permission granted by the Supreme Cow-t on May 31. 

October 10 
he appeal to the U. S. Supreme Court is argued by Walter 

H. Pollak, retained by the International Labor Defense. 

November 7 
The U. S. Supreme Court reverses the conviction of the seven 

defendants on the ground that appointment of counsel appear­
ing for them in the original trial at Scottsboro was inadequate 
and granted. Trials are set for Morgan County nelli" Jackson 
County in which the original trials were held. 

1933 

March 6 
A petition for a change of venue from Scottcboro ia filed 

and granted. Trials are set for Morgan County near Jackson 
County in which the original trials were held. 

March 27 
Haywood Patterson is placed on trial at Decatur, Morgan 

County, before Judge Jame a E. Horton. The trial lasts until 



April 9, resulting in Patterson'• conviction, the jury imposing 
the death penalty. Patterson ia defended by Samuel S. Leib­
owitz and Joseph R. Brodsky of New York, and George W. 
Chamlee of Chattanooga, Tenn., all retained by the Interna­
tional Labor Defense. 

Ruby Bates, one of the complaining witnesses, appears at 
this trial and reverses her previous testimony, denying that the 
boys committed rape on her or Victoria Price. Her story is 
challenged by Victoria Price who maintains her original tes­
timony. 

April 16 
Joseph R. Brodsky files with Judge Hor on a motion for a 

new trial for Haywood Patterson on the ground th t the con­
viction was against the weight of the evidence. 

June 1 
Two of the boys under 16 years of age are ordered t ·ana­

ferred by Judge Horton to the Juvenile Court. 

June 22 
Judge Horton grants the motion for a new trial of Haywood 

Pa terson and sets aside the conviction with a lengthy opinion 
reviewing the case ,and concluding that the conviction was un­
justified by the evidence. ( On the basis of this opinion Judge 
Horton was defeated for reelectio.n the following year.) 

November 20 
Haywood Patterson goes on trial for the third time, before 

Judge W. W. Callahan at Decatur. His trial lasts until Dec. 1 
when he is convicted and again the jury imposes the death 
penalty. Clarence Norris is put on trial immediately and is 
similarly convicted after a week. Both boys are represented 
by Samuel S. Leibowitz and Joseph R. Brodsky of New York, 
and George W. Chamlee of Chattanooga, Tenn. 

1934 -February 24 
Motions for a new trial denied by Judge Callahan. 

May 25 
Appeals in both cases are argued in the Alabama Supreme 

Court by Samuel S. Leibowitz and Osmond K. Fraenkel. The 
Court affirms the convictions on June 28. Mot· ons for re-



bearing are denied by the court on October 4. 

November 
Petitions are filed in the U. S. Supreme Court for review of both convictions. 

1935 -January 7 
The Supreme Court of the United States grants petitiona for review, and the appeals are argued on February 15 to 18 before the Supreme Court by Samuel S. Leibowitz, retained by the &erican Scottsboro Committee, and Walter H. Pollak retained by the International Labor Defense, auiated by Osmond K. Fraenkel. 

April 1 
The Supreme Court reverses the convictions of both boys on the ground that Nesroes were excluded from the panels of grand and petit jurors which indicted and tried the boys. 

May 1 
New warrants are sworn out by Victoria Price, the only com­plaining witness since the withdrawal of Ruby Bates from the prosecution. 

November 13 
The grand jury at Scottsboro return, new indicbnenta for rape against all the boys includinr the two transferred to the Juvenile Court. 

December 
The Scottsboro Defense Committee is formed, composed of all agencies cooperating in the defense. The American Scotts­boro Committee ia diaaolved. 

1936 -January 6 to 8 
The defendants, other than the two juveniles, are arraigned and plead not guilty. Petitions for removal to the U. S. District Court are rejected by Judge Callahan and the first cue ia set for trial January 20. Attorneys Samuel S. Leibowitz of New York, C. L Watts of Huntsville, Ala. and Georl'e W. Chamlee of Chattanooga, Tenn. are enlisted to conduct the defense. 



Judie Horton•s Decision in the Scottsl:,oro Case 
NOTE: Headings, bold face empha is and some punctuation are 

inserted in h,dge Horton's opinion following, to make it more 
clearly readable. 

The defendant in this case has been tried and convicted 
for the crime of rape with the death penalty inflicted. He 
is one of nine charged with a similar crime at the same time. 

The case is now submitted for hearing on a motion of a 
new trial. As human life is at stake, not only of this de­
f endant, but of eight others, the Court does and should ap­
proach a consideration of this motion with a feeling of deep 
responsibility, and shall endeavor to give it that thought 
and study it deserves. 

Social order is based on law, and its perpetuity on its fair 
and impartial administration. Deliberate injustice is more 
fatal to the one who imposes than to the one on whom it is 
imposed. The victim may die quickly and his suffering cease, 
but the teachings of Christianity and. the uniform lesson 
of all history illustrate without exception that its perpetrators 
not only pay the penalty themselves, but their children 
through endless generations. To those who deserve punish­
ment who have outraged society and its laws-on such, an 
impartial justice inflicts the penalties for the violated laws 
of society, even to the tabling of life itself; but to those 
who are guiltless the law withholds its heavy hand. 

The Court will decide this motion upon the sole considera­
tion of what is its duty under the law. The Court must be 
faithful in the exercise of the powers which it believes it 
possesses as it must be careful to abstain from the assump­
tion of those not within its proper sphere. It has endeavored 
with diligence to enlighten itself with the wisdom declared 
in the cases adjudged by the most pure and enlightened 
judges who have ornamented the Courts of its own state, 
as well as the distinguished jurists of this country and its 
Mother England. It has been unstinted in the study of the 
facts presented in the case at bar. 

The law wisely recognizes the passions, prejudices and 
sympathies that such cases as these naturally arouse, but 
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JUDGE HORTON'S DECISION IN THE SCOTTSBORO CASE 

sternly requires of its ministers freedom from such actu­
ating impulses~ 

The Court will now proceed to consider this case on the 
law and evidence only making such observations and con­
clusions as may appear necessary to explain and illustrate 
the same. 

There are a number of grounds for the motion. The Court 
has. decided that no good purpose may be subserved in con­
sidering a number of these; without deciding whether these 
grounds are well based or not, the Court sees no need of 
their being considered. These omitted grounds are such as 
probably would not re-occur in another trial, and if they 
did they would certainly be under a different form. The 
vital ground of this motion, as the Court aees it, is whether or 
not the verdict of the jury is contrary to the evidence. Is there 
sufficient credible ,evidence upon wbi.ch to base a verdict? 

( The judge then cites the authoritiies for granting a new 
trial and for consi.de1·ing the evidence in doing so. They are 
omitted here as of interest only to lawyers, but will be sup­
plied on request..) 

The Facts of the Alleged Crime 

With the law so written, let us now turn to the facts of 
the case. The Court will of necessity consider in detail the 
evidence of the chief prosecutrix, Victoria Price, to deter­
mine if her evidence is reliable, or whether it is corroborated 
or contradicted by the other evidence in the case. In order 
to convict this defendant, Victoria Price must have sworn 
truly to the fact of her being raped. No matter how reliable 
the testimony of the defendant and his witnesses, unless the 
State can make out a case upon the whole evidence a con­
viction cannot stand. 

The claim of the State is that this defendant raped Vic­
toria Price; that is the charge. The circumstances under 
which the crime was claimed to have been committed ap­
pear as follows: 

8 
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On March 25th, 1931, the pro ecutrix, Victoria Price, and 
Ruby Bates, her companion, boarded a freight train at Chat­
tanooga, Tennessee, for the purpo e of going to Hunt ville, 
Alabama. On the same train were seven white boy , and 
twelve negroes, who it appear participated or are charged 
with participating in the occurrences on such train. All were 
tramps or "hoboing" their way upon thi same freight train. 

About Stevenson, Alabama, a fight occuri ed between the 
negroes and the white boys and aU the white boy , except 
one named Gilley, got off the train, or were thrown off the 
train, a short time after the train left Stevenson, Alabama. 
The distance from Stevenson to Paint Rock i thirty-eight 
miles. The train was travelling between twenty-five and 
thirty-five miles an hour. Some of the white boy "ho were 
thrown off the train r,eturned to Stevenson, Alabama, and 
the operator telegraphed to Paint Rock, a place down the 
line, reporting the fight, causing a posse and a large crowd 
to form at Paint Rock, and they surrounded the train a it 
pulled into Paint Rock and took th9"refrom nine negroe , one 
of whom was this defendant, the two white girl , and their 
white companion, Gilley. The negroes were arrested and 
lodged in the Scottsbm·o jail as well as the two women and 
the seven white boys. The two women were forthwith car­
l'ied to the office of a physician in Scott boro, arriving there 
from one hour to one and one-half hours after they claimed 
a rape was committed upon them, and were examined by 
two skilled physicians, Drs. Bridges and Lynch. It wa 
while the train was travelling between Steven on and Paint 
Rock between shortly after noon and three o' lock that the 
alleged rape was committed. 

There have been two trials of this case; one at Scott boro 
and the other the recent trial at Decatur. The trial at Scott -
boro was reversed by the Supreme Court of the United 
States, who declared the defendants did not have the as­
sistance of counsel. The motion in this case i upon the 
result of the trial at Decatur. The evidence at the trial at 
Decatur was vastly more extensive and differed in many 
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JUDGE HORTON'S DECISION IN THE SCOTTSBORO CASE 

important respects from the evidence at Scottsboro. 
Much of the evidence at Scottsboro was introduced at the 

trial at Decatur, and the Court will consider the entire evi­
dence submitted as it may appear necessary in considering 
this motion. The Court shall endeavor in quoting the evidence 
to quote it substantially, and sometimes literally as given, 
only stating its substance when requisite to make its mean­
ing clear. 

As stated, the State relies on the evidence of the prose­
cutrix, Victoria Price, as to the fact of the crime itself, 
necessarily claiming that her relation is true. The defense 
insists that her evidence is a fabrication-fabricated for the 
purpose of saving herself from a prosecution for vagrancy 
or some other charge. 

The Court will therefore first set out the substantial facts 
testified to by Victoria Price and test it as the law requires 
as to its reliability or p,robability, and as to whether it is 
contradicted by the other evidence .. 

The T'estimon)' of Victoria Price 

She states that on Mar'ch 25, 193,1 she was on a freight 
train travelling through Jackson County from Stevenson 
to Paint Rock; that Ruby Bates was with her on the train; 
that she had boarded the train at Chattanooga, Tennessee; 
that when she first boarded the train she got on an oil-tank 
car. That at Stevenson, she and Ruby Bates walked down the 
train and got on a gondola car-a car without a top. That 
the car was filled with chert, lacking about one and one-half 
or two feet of being full; that the chert was sharp, broken 
rock with jagged ends. 

That as the train proceeded from Stevenson seven white 
boys got in the car with them and that they all sat down 
in one end of the car, next to a box car; that in about 
five or ten minutes twelve colored boys jumped from the 
box car into the gondola, jumping over their heads. That 
the defendant was one of them. That the col?red boys had 
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JUDGE HORTON'S DECISION IN THE SCOTTSBORO CASE 

seven knives and two pistols ; that they engaged in a fight 
with the white boy~, ejecting all from the train except one, 
Orville Gilley; that this white boy stayed on the gondola, 
remained there and was still on the car when Paint Rock 
was reached, and saw the whole thing that thereafter oc­
curred on this car. 

That one of the negroes picked her up by the legs and 
held her over the gondola, and said he was going to throw 
her off; that she was pulled back in the car and one of the 
negroes hit her on the side of the head with ·a pistol causing 
her head to bleed ; that the negroes then pulled off the over­
alls she was wearing and tore her step-ins apart. That they 
then threw her down on the chert and with some of the 
negroes holding her legs and with a knife at her throat, 
six negroes raped her, one of whom was the defendant; that 
she lay there for almost an hour on that ]agged rock, with 
the negroes lying on top of her, some of whom were pretty 
heavy;. that the last one finished j ust five minutes before 
reaching Paint Rock and that her ov ralls had just been 
pulled on when the train stopped at Paint Rock with the 
posse surrounding it. 

That she got up and climbed over the side of the gondola 
and as she alighted she became unconscious for a while, 
and that she· didn't remember anything until she came to 
herself in a grocery store and she was then taken to Scotts­
boro, as the evidence shows, in an automobile and that in 
about an hour or an hour and one-half Dr. Bridges and Dr. 
Lynch made an examination of her person. 

This witness further testified that she was wet on her 
private parts; that each negro wetted her more and more; 
that her private parts were bleeding; that the blood was 
on her clothes ; that her coat had semen on it; that when 
Dr. Bridges and Dr. Lynch examined her they saw her coat 
and it was spattered over with semen ; that her dresses had 
blood and semen on them; that she had them on when the 
doctors examined her; that the coat was cleaned and that 
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she washed the dresses in the jail before the trial. The evi­

dence further shows without dispute that all nine negr~es 

were taken in charge by the officers and carried to the 

Scottsboro jail. 

The Judge's Comment on Victoria Price's Story 

With seven boys present at the beginning of this trouble, 

with one seeing the entire affair, with some fifty or sixty 

persons meeting them at Paint Rock and taking the women, 

the white boy Gilley, and the nine negroes in charge, with 

two physicians examining the women within one to one and 

one half hours, according to the tendency of all the 

evidence, after the occurrence of the alleged rape, and with 

the acts charged committed in broad daylight, we should 

expect from all this cloud of witnesses or from the mute 

but telling phy ical condition of the women or their clothes 

ome one fact in corroboration of this story. 

Let us consider the rich field f rom which such corrobora­

tion may be gleaned. 
1. Seven boys on the gondola at the beginning of the 

fight, and Orville Gilley, the white boy, who remained on 

the train, and who saw the whole performance. 

2. The wound inflicted on the side of Victoria Price's 

head by the butt-end of a pidtol from which the blood did 

flow. 
3. The lacerated and bleeding back of the body, a part 

of which was stripped of clothing and lay on jagged sharp 

rock, which body two physicians carefully examined for 

injuries shortly after the occurrence. 

4. Semen in the vagina and it drying and starchy ap­

pearance in the pubic hair and surrounding parts. 

5. Two doctors who could testify that they saw her coat 

all spattered over with semen; who could testify to the blood 

and semen on her clothes, and to the bleeding vagina. 

6. Two doctors who could testify to the wretched condition 
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of the women, their wild eyes, dilated pupils, fast breathing, 
and rapid pulse. 

7. The semen which must have eventually appeared with 
increasing evidence on the pants of the rapists as each 
wallowed in its spreading ooze. The prosecutrix testified 
semen wa being emitted by her rapists, and common sense 
tells us six discharges is a considerable quantity. 

8. Live spermatozoa, the active principle of semen, would 
be expected in the vagina o'f the fem ale from so recent 
discharges. 

9. The washing before the first trial by Victoria Price 
of the very clothes which she claimed were stained with 
semen and blood. 

The Court will not present the evidence which will show: 
that none of the seven white boys, or Orville Gilley, 

who remained on the train were put on the stand, except 
Lester Carter; 

that neither Dr. Bl'"idges nor Dr~ Lynch saw the wound 
inflicted on the head by the pistol, the lacerated or bleeding 
back which lay on jagged rocks; 

that the semen they found in the vagina of Victoria Price 
was of small amount; 

that the spermatozoa were non-motile, or dead ; 
that they saw no blood flowing from the vagina; 
that they did not testify as to seeing the semen all spatter­

ed over the coat, or blood and semen on the clothes ; any 
torn garments or clothes; 

that these doctors testified that when brought to the office 
that day neither woman wa hysterical or nervous about 
it at all, and that their respiration and pulse were normal; 

and that the prosecutrix washed the clothes evidencing 
the blood and semen. 

Taking up these points in order, what does the record show? 
None of the seven white boys were put on the stand, except 

Lester Carter, and he contradicted her. 
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Next, wu Victoria Price hit in the head with a pistol? 
For this we must turn to Dr. Bridges. It was agreed in 
open court that Dr. Lynch who in company with Dr. Bridges 
at Scottsboro examined the two girls, would testify in all 
substantial particulars as Dr. Bridges, and Dr. Lynch was 
excused with that understanding when Dr. Bridges completed 
his examination. In considering Dr. Bridges' testimony 
we observe he was a witness placed on the stand by the 
State. His intelligence, his fair testimony, his honesty, and 
his high professional attainments impressed the Court and 
certainly all that heard him. He was frank and unevasive 
in his answers. The Court's opinion is that he should be 
given full faith and credit. In further considering his tes­
timony it was shown that he was examining tliese women 
with the most particular care to find evidence of a rape upon 
them, and that the women were accusing the negroes, and 
were being required to cooperate and exhibit whatever in­
dicated they had been abused., 

Returning to the pistol lick on the head. The doctor 
testifies: "I did not sew up any wound on this girl's head; 
I did not see any blood on her scalp. I don't remember my 
attention being called to any blood or blow on the scalp." 
And this was the blow that the woman claimed helped force 
her into submission. 

Next, wu she thrown and abused, u abe states she wu, upon 
the chert-the sharp, jagged rock? 

Dr. Bridges states as to physical hurts ;-we found some 
small scratches on the back part of the wrist; she had some 
blue places in the small of the back, low down in the soft 
part, three or four bruises about like the joint of your 
thumb, small as a pecan, and then on the shoulders a blue 
place about the same size-and we put them on the table, 
and an examination showed no lacerations. 

The evidence of other witnesses as well as the prosecutrix 
will show that the women had travelled from Huntsville to 
Chattanooga and were on the way back. There is other 
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evidence tending to show they had spent the night in a 
hobo dive; that they were having intercourses with men 
shortly before that time. Theae few blue apota and tbia 
acratcb would be the natural comequence of aucb livins; vutly 
sreater phyaical •ism would have been expected from the 
forcible intercourae of six men under aucb circmmtancea. 

Victoria Price testified that as the negroes had repeated 
intercourse with her she became wetter and wetter around 
her private parts; that they finished just as they entered 
Paint Rock, and that she was taken in an automobile im­
mediately to the doctors' office. There Dr. Bridges and Dr. 
Lynch, as has been shown, examined her. They looked for 
semen around her private parts; they found on the inside of 
her thighs some dirty places. The dirty places were hardly 
dry, and were infiltrated with dust, about what one would 
get from riding trains. It was dark dirt or dust. While 
the doctor did not know what this drying fluid was, his 
opinion was that it was semen, but whatever it was, it was 
covered with heavy dust and dirt. 

He next examines the vagina to see whether or not any 
semen was in the vagina. In order to do this he takes a 
cotton mop and with the aid of a speculum and headlight 

,inserts the cotton mop into the woman's vagina and swabs 
around the cervix, which is the mouth of uterus or womb. 
He extracts from this vagina the substance adhering to the 
cotton after he has swabbed around the cervix, and places 
this substance under the microscope. He examines this 
substance to see if spermatozoa are to be found, and what is 
the condition of the spermatozoa. Upon the examination 
under the microscope he finds that there are spermatozoa 
in the vagina. This spermatozoa he ascertains to be non­
motile. He says to the best of his judgment that non-motile 
means the spermatozoa were dead. 

For any fluid escaping from the vagina to become infil­
trated With coal dust and dirt, this dirt under the circum­
stances in this case must have gradually sifted upon the 
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drying fluid, and necessarily a considerable period of time 
would be required for such an infiltration. The fresh semen 
emitted by so many negroes would have had a tendency 
rather to wash off any dirty places around the vagina, and 
it must have remained there for a considerable period for it 
to become thus infiltrated with dust and coal dust. Around 
the cervix the spermatozoa live under the most favorable 
conditions. While the life of the spermatozoa may be vari­
able, still it appears from the evidence that in such a place 
as this it would have taken at least several hours for the 
spermatozoa to have become non-motile or dead. 

When we consider, as the facts hereafter detailed will show, 
that this woman had slept side by aide with a man the night 
before in Chattanooga, and had intercourse at Huntsville with 
Tiller on the night before she went to Chattanooga; when we 
further take into consideration that the semen being emitted, 
if her testimony were true, was covering the area surrounding 
the private parts, the conclusion becomes clearer and clearer 
that this woman was not forced into intercourse with all of 
these negroea upon that train, but that her condition was clearly 
due to the intercourse that she had had on the nights previous 
to this time. 

Was there any evidence of semen on the clothes of any of 
the negroes? 

In the ca e of State vs. Cowing, 99 Minn. 123; 9Am. & En. 
Ann. cases, 566, the Court said the physicians who testified 
stated that the semen would have remained on the clothes 
and could have been found after the expiration of several days. 
And this is probably a well known fact. Though these negroes 
were arrested just after the alleged acts, and though their 
clothes and pants were examined or looked over by the of­
ficers, not a witness testified as to seeing any semen or even 
any wet or damp spots on their clothes. 

What of the coat of the woman spattered with semen, and 
the blood and semen on the clothes and the bleeding vagina? 

Dr. Bridges says he did not see any blood coming from her 
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vagina; that Mrs. Price had on step-ins, but did not state 
that they were torn or had blood or semen on them. ot a 
word from this doctor of the blood and semen on th dre s; 
not a word of the semen all spattered over the coat. And this 
was a doctor so conscientious and thorough in his examination 
as to make the woman undress and to examine with care 
every part of her body; a doctor who in his search for semen 
went to the extent of swabbing out the vagina and of examin­
ing its contents under the microscope. 

What of the physical appearance of these two women when 
the doctors saw them ? 

Dr. Bridges says that when the e two women were brought 
to his office neither was hysterical, or nervous about it at 
all. He noticed nothing unusual about their re piration and 
their pulse was normal. 

Such a normal physical condition is not the natural ac­
companiment or result of so horrible an experience, e peci­
ally when the woman testified she fainted from the injurie 
she had received. 

The fact that the women were uncha te might tend to 
mitigate the marked effect upon their ,sen ibilities, but such 
hardness would also lessen the probability of either of them 
fainting. If the faint was feigned then her credibility must 
suffer from such feigned action . And thi witne ' anger 
and protest when the doctors insisted on an examination of 
her person was not compatible with the depre sion of spirit 
likely to be caused by the treatment she said she had 
received. 

Lastly, before leaving Dr. Bridges let us quote his sum­
mation of all that he observed: 

"Q. In other words the best you can say about the whole 
case is that both of these women showed they had had in­
tercourse?" 

"A. Yes, sir.'' 
Is there corroboration in this? We think not, especially 

as the evidence points strongly to Victoria Price having in-
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tercourse with one Tiller on several occasions just before 
leaving Huntsville. That she slept in a hobo jungle in Chat­
tanooga, side by side with a man. The dead spermatozoa 
and the dry dirty spots would be expected from those earlier 
acts . • 

Victoria Price te1tified that abe wubed her clothes, wbicla 
were atained with semen and blood, before even the trial at 
Scottsboro. 

The Supreme Court of Minnesota in the case of State vs. 
Cowing, 99 Minn. 123, 9 Am. & En. Ann. cases, 566, in 
setting aside a conviction of rape laid great stress and largely 
based its action upon such conduct of the prosecuting witness. 
This Court said : 

"While not without some corroboration, the testimony of 
prosecutrix is aided most largely by that of her sister; but 
that corroboration is to be weighed in connection with the 
fact that she and her sister, by washing the skirt, which if 
her testimony were true, would probably have borne evidence 
of blood and semen, effectually destroyed the best possible 
evidence under the circumstances." 

Court's Comment on OtheT Witnesses 

11 there any other corroboration? There was a large crowd 
at Paint Rock when the freight arrived there. While they 
differed in many details as to the make-up of the train and 
the exact car from which the different persons were taken, all 
of which is apparently unimportant, all agreed upon the 
main fact-that the nine negroes, the two women, and the 
white boy were all taken from the train. This undisputed 
fact constitutes about the whole extent of their evidence 
except a statement by Ruby Bates that she had been raped, 
which experience the said Ruby Bates now repudiates. 

This statement by Ruby Bates appears to have been made 
under the following circumstances. There were three wit­
nesses who testified to having seen the women at Paint Rock. 
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One of the witnesses first saw them after they had gotten off 
the car and were both standing. Another witness did not see 
them for some time, he having first rounded up all the 
negroes. The third witness saw them as they were getting 
off the car. He states they first started to run toward the 
engine and as they approached a crowd of men they turned 
and ran back in the opposite direction, and met a part of 
the posse who stopped them. Mr. Hill, the station agent, 
then came up to the women and asked them if the negroes 
had bothered them. Thereupon Ruby Bates stated that they 
had been raped. The facts appearing that the women in­
stead of seeking the protection of the white men they saw 
were at first frightened, and the question propounded was 
in itself suggestive of an answer. Mr. Hill also states that 
the negroes were in a coal car; that he saw the heads of the 
negroes over the top of the car and they were trying to 
climb over the sides, were pulling themselves up, trying to 
get off. This clearly indicates that the negroes were not 
in the car filled with chert, as the pro ,ecutrix claims. 

For any other corroboration in the evidence we now re­
turn to the freight train as it passes along the track just 
after leaving Stevenson. The witness, Lee Adams, at a point 
about one quarter of a mile from the train, sees a fight 
between a number of white and colored boys; this is an 
admitted fact in the case. 

The evidence of Ory Dobbins was admitted in corrobora­
tion of Victoria Price. When his evidence is studied it is 
found it does not corroborate her, or if so very slightly. The 
good faith of this witness need not be the slightest questioned, 
only the lack of correspondence of his testimony with hers. 
He stated that he lived three miles from Stevenson near the 
railroad as it ran toward Scottsboro; that as he walked to 
his barn he saw a freight train; that as it passed his house 
he saw a white woman sitting on the side of a gondola and 
a negro put his arm around her waist and throw her back 
in the car; that he saw the car as it passed; that it was in 
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his line of vision for a few feet, pointing out a door in the 
court room as the distance. His reason for stating it was 
a woman is as follows: 

Q. You know it was a woman don't you? 
"A. She had on women's clothes. 
"COURT: She had on women's clothes? 
"Q. What kind of clothes, overalls? 
"A. No, sir, dress." 
The very basis of this statement that she was a woman 

because she had on a dress does not apply to the women in 
this case, who were dressed in overalls. 

He said it was in a coal car and there were five or six 
people in the car. Victoria Price says when they took hold 
of her that it occurred in a car almost filled with chert, and 
there were fifteen people in the car. The witness Dobbins 
said the gondola was between two box cars, while the evid­
ence shows the gondola in which the woman was, was the 
fifth of a string of eight gondolas. 

The witness further stated that the car upon which he 
saw this occurrence was back toward the caboose. On the 
other hand the official make-up of the train shows the freight 
train consisted of forty cars; that the women were in the 
eleventh or twelfth car from the engine and there were 
twenty-eight or twenty-nine cars between this car and the 
caboose. In view of the fact that it was along in this vicin­
ity that the fight was occurring between the negroes and the 
white boys, and as his reason for saying it was a woman was 
on account of the dress, and all agree tliese women had on 
overalls, this can at its best be only slight corroboration. 

The Court's Comment on the State's Case 
Thia is the State's evidence. It corroborates Victoria Price 

slightly, if at all, and her evidence is ao contradictory to the 
evidence of the doctors who examined her that it has been 
impouible for the Court to reconcile their evidence with hers. 
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Next, was the evidence of Victoria Price reasonable or 
probable? Were the facts stated reasonable 1 This is one 
of the tests the law applies. 

Rape is a crime usually committed in secrecy. A secluded 
place or a place where one ordinarily would not be observed 
is the natural selection for the scene of such a crime. The 
time and place and stage of this alleged act are such to make 
one wonder and question did such an act occur under such 
circumstances. The day is a sunshiny day the latter part in 
March; the time of day is shortly after the noon hour. The 
place is upon a gondola or car without a top. This gondola 
according to the evidence of Mr. Turner, the conductor, was 
filled to within six inches to twelve or fourteen inches of the 
top with chert, and according to Victoria Price up to one 
and one half feet or two feet of the top. The whole perf or­
mance necessarily being in plain view of any one observing 
the train as it passed.. Open gondolas on each side. 

On top of this chert twelve negroe rape two white women; 
they undress them while they are , tanding up on this chert; 
the prosecuting witness is then thrown down and with one 
negro continuously kneeling over her with a knife at her 
throat, and one or more holding her legs, six negroes suc­
cessively have intercourse with her on top of that chert; 
as one arises off of her person, another lies down upon her; 
those not engaged are standing or sitting around ; this con­
tinues without intermission although that freight train trav­
els for some forty miles through the heart of Jackson County; 
through Fackler, Hollywood, Scottsboro, Larkin ville, Lin 
Rock, and Woodville, slowing up at several of these places 
until it is halted at Paint Rock; Gilley, a white boy, pulled 
back on the train by the negroes, and sitting off, according 
to Victoria Price, in one end of the gondola, a witness to 
the whole scene; yet he stays on the train, and he does not 
attempt to get off of the car at any of the places where it 
slows up to call for help; he does not go back to the caboose 
to report to the conductor or to the engineer in the engine, 
although no compulsion is being exercised upon him, and 
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instead of there being any threat of danger to him from the 
negroes, they themselves have pulled him back on the train 
to prevent his being injured from jumping off the train after 
it had increased its speed; and in the end by a fortuitous­
circumstance just before the train pulls into Paint Rock, 
the rapists cease and just in the nick of time the overalls 
are drawn up and fastened and the women appear clothed 
as the posse sight them. The natural inclination of the mind 
is to doubt and to seek further search. 

Her manner ( Victoria Price, ed.) of testifying and de­
meanor on the stand militate against her. Her testimony 
was contradictory, often evasive, and time and again she 
ref used to answer pertinent questions. The gravity of the 
offense and the importance of her testimony demanded can­
dor and sincerity. In addition to this the proof tends strong­
ly to show that she knowingly testified falsely in many 
material aspects of the case. All this requires the more 
careful scrutiny of her evidence. 

The Court bu heretofore devoted itself particularly to the 
State's evidence; this evidence fails to corroborate Victoria 
Price in those physical facts; the condition of the woman raped 
necessarily speaking more powerfully than any witness can 
apeak who did not view the performance itself. 

Comment on Credibility of Victoria Price 
The Court will next consider her credibility, and in doing 

so, some of the evidence off red for the defendant will also 
come in for consideration. In considering any evidence for 
the defendant which would end to show that Victoria Price 
swore falsely the Court will exclude the evidence of witnesses 
for defendant, who themselves appear unworthy of credit, 
unless the facts and circumstanc so strongly corroborate 
that evidence that it appears true. 

Lester Carter was a witness for the defendant; he was one 
of the white boys ejected from the train below Stevenson. 
Whether or not he is entitled to entire credit is certainly 
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a question of great doubt; but where the facts and circum­
stances corroborate him, and where the failure of the State 
to disprove his testimony with witnesses on hand to disprove 
it, the Court sees no reason to capriciously reject all he said. 

Victoria Price denied she knew him until she arrived at 
Scottsboro. It became a question to be considered as to 
whether Lester Carter knew her at Huntsville and saw her 
committing adultery on several occasions with one Tiller 
just before leaving for Chattanooga, and returning on the 
freight the next day. The facts he testified to might easily 
account for the dead spermatozoa in her vagina. He says 
he met Victoria Price and Tiller while in jail at Huntsville; 
that all three were inmates of the jail at the same time; that 
Ruby Bates visited Tiller and Victoria Price while they were 
in jail, and he, Carter, met her at the jail; that after all had 
gotten out, and he had finished his sentence, he stayed in the 
home of Tiller and his wife, and he and Tiller would go out 
and be with these girls,; that they all p,lanned the Chattanooga 
trip together, and that just before the trip, or the night be .. 
fore, all four were engaged in adulterous intercourse. 

Victoria Price stated on the stand that Tiller, the married 
man, was her boy friend and was in her home the night be­
fore she left for Chattanooga; that he had a right there, and 
he was corresponding with her. Tiller was in the State' 
witness-room then and identified by Lester Carter when he 
was brought out of the witness-room by the Court's order. 
Tiller, though there in court, was not put on the stand to 
deny what Carter said. There is no reason to doubt Carter 
was telling the truth then. Next Carter said that when he 
and Ruby Bates and Victoria Price arrived in Chattanooga 
about eight o'clock at night all went to what is known a th 
"Hoboes Jungle," a place where tramps of all descriptions 
pent the night in the open. There are numerous witnesse 

who corroborate him in this statement; that they met the boy 
Gilley aJld all four slept side by side, he by the side of Ruby 
Bates, and Victoria Price by the side of Gilley. 

Victoria Price said that she and Ruby Bates went to Chat-

28 



JUDGE HORTON'S DECISION IN THE SCOTTSBORO CASE 

tanooga seeking work; that they went alone and spent the 
night at Mrs. Callie Brochie's, a friend of hers formerly 
living in Huntsville, but who had moved to Chattanooga. 
Was this true? The Chattanooga directory was introduced 
in evidence; residents of Chattanooga, both white and color­
erl, took the stand stating that no such woman as Callie 
Brochie lived in Chattanooga and had not ever lived there 
so far as they knew. Though Victoria Price first made this 
statement more than two years ago at Scottsboro, no witness 
was offered either from Chattanooga or Huntsville showing 
any such woman had ever lived in either such place. 

Victoria Price said the negroes jumped off a box-car over 
their heads into the gondola, where she, Ruby Bates and the 
seven white boys were riding, with seven knives and two 
pistols and engaged in a fight with the white boys. The con­
ductor of the train who had the official make-up of the train 
stated there were eight gondola cars together on the train; 
that the women were in one of the middle ca1"'s, and that 
there were three gondola car,s between the car in which they 
were riding and the nearest box ca . Lester Carter stated 
that he was one of the seven boys engaged in the fight with 
the negroes; that he did not see a single knife or pistol in 
the hands of the negroes. And although these seven white 
boys were kept in jail at Scottsboro until after the first trial 
no one testified to any knife or pistol wounds on any of them. 

Further there was evidence of trouble between Victoria 
Price and the white boys in the jail at Scottsboro because 
one or more of them ref used to go on the witness-stand 
and testify a she did concerning the rape; that Victoria 
Price indicated that by so doing they would all get off lighter. 

The defendant and five of the other negroes charged with 
participating in this crime at the same time went on the 
stand and denied any participation in the rape; denied that 
they knew anything about it, and denied that they saw any 
white women on the train. Four of them did state that they 
took part in the fight with the white boys which occurred 
on the train. Two of them testified that they knew nothing 
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of the fight nor of the girls, and were on an entirely different 
part of the train. Each of the e two testified as to 
phy ical infirmities. One testified he was so diseased he could 
hardly walk, and he was examined at Scott boro according 
to the evidence and was found to be di ea ed. The other 
te tified that one eye was entirely out and that he could only 
ee sufficiently out of the other to walk unattended. The 

physical condition of this prisoner indicates apparently great 
defect of vision. He testified,. and the testimony so show , 
that he was in the same condition at Scott boro and at the 
time of the rape. He further testified that he was on an 
oil-tank near the rear of the train, about the eYenth car 
from the rear; that he stayed on this oil-tank all the time 
and that he was taken from off of this oil-tank. The evid­
ence of one of the trainmen tends to show that one of the 
negroes was taken off of an oil-tank toward the rear of the 
train. This near-blind negro was among those whom Victoria 
Price testified was :in the fight and in the party which raped her 
and Ruby Bates. The facts strongly contradict any such state• 
ment. 

Conclusion 

History, sacred and profane, and the common experience of 
mankind teach us that women of the character shown in this 
case are prone for selfish reasons to make false accusations 
both of rape and of insult upon the slightest provocation, or 
even without provocation for ulterior purposes. These women 
are shown, by the great weight of the evidence, on this very 
day before leaving Chattanooga,. to have f alaely accused two 
negroes of insulting them, and of almost precipitating a fight 
between one of the white boys they were in company with and 
these two negroes. This tendency on the part of the women 
shows that they are pre-disposed to make false accusations upon 
any occasion whereby their selfish ends may be gained. 

The Court will not pursue the evidence any further. 
As heretofore stated the law declares that a defendant 
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should not be convicted without corroboration where the 
testimony of the prosecutrix bears on its face indications 
of unreliability or improbability and particularly when it 
is contradicted by other evidence. 

The testimony of the prosecutrix in this cue is not only un­
corroborated, but it alao bears on its face indications of im­
probability and is contradicted by other evidence, and in ad­
dition thereto the evidence greatly preponderates in favor of 
the defendant. It therefore becomes the duty of the Court 
under the law to grant the motion made in this case. 

It is therefore ordered and adjudged by the Court that the 
motion be granted; that the verdict of the jury in this cue 
and the judgment of the Court sentencing this defendant to 
death be, and the same is hereby set aside and that a new trial 
be and the same is hereby ordered. 

This June 22nd, 1933. 
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Date .................................. .. 

1. Count on me u a supporter of the defense of the 
nine Scottsboro boys. I will contribute toward the defenae 

funds $..... ..... ................. payable ........................... ......... ...................................... . 

2. Please send information as occasion arises aa to 
how I can help in other ways in the defenae. 

3. Please do ·····••n••·...... send me further literature about 
the case, issued free to contributor• (nominal prices to 
others). 

4. I suggest aa others likely to be interested: 

• ••••••••••••••• ..... , ............................................................................... , .......................................... .. .................... ii> .................... , •• 

5. Remarks ................. ,.. ............................................................................... . 

, ........................................................................................................................ ,, ............................................ ... ..... , .... , ...... ,. .... .. 

Siped ......................................................................................... . 

Adclreu ...................................................................................... . 

City............................................................ State ...................... .. 

J I 




